HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 18, 2003
2:18 PM

TAPE HFC 03 - 21, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 21, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Harris called the House Finance Conmttee neeting
to order at 2:18 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Eric Croft
Representative Gary Stevens

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis; Corina Eckl, Fiscal Program Director,
Nat i onal Conference of State Legislators

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
GENERAL SUBJECT(S) :

PRESENTATI ON BY NATI ONAL CONFERENCE OF STATE LEQ SLATORS

The followi ng overview was taken in |log note format. Tapes
and handouts wll be on file wth the House Finance
Comm ttee through the 23rd Legislative Session, contact 465-
2156. After the 23rd Legislative Session they wll be
avai l abl e through the Legislative Library at 465-3808.

LOG | SPEAKER DI SCUSSI ON

TAPE HFC 03 - 21
SIDE A

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/ 18/ 03 2: 18 PM



0130

CORI NA ECKL, FI SCAL
PROGRAM DI RECTOR,
NATI ONAL CONFERENCE
OF STATE LEGQ SLATORS

Presented information from the Nationa
Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL).
She explained that this report was
previously given at a national press
event in Wshington, D.C and received
considerable attention, and used as a
talking point in Congress. She not ed
t hat t he NCSLS was a bi parti san
organi zation, founded in 1975, serving
all states and territories, and |ocated
in Denver and Washington DC. Wiile the
Denver office focuses on state services
and problem solutions, the WAshington
of fice focuses on state-federal relations
and | obbies Congress on behalf of the
st at es.

327

Ms. Eckl

Qutlined the resources avail able through
NCSL (handout on file). She referred to
Bob Boerner as the liaison to the State
of Alaska. M. Eckl is assigned to state
of Hawaii .

414

Ms. Eckl

Summarized the FY 2003 Budget Gaps,
originally projected at $49.1. She
explained that the budget gaps were
defined as a conbination of revenue
falling below projections and spending
overruns. State budget gaps have grown
50% in just two nonths, growing to a
current $25.7 billion, over 5% of state
general fund spending. 36 states report
budget gaps. She referred to a map
indicating the |evel of budget gaps in
states around the country. She not ed
that, of the 15 states not facing budget
gaps, several had solved previous budget
pr obl ens.

557

Co-Chair Harris

Asked whether any other states had a
permanent fund simlar to Al aska, or that
pai d any divi dends.

614

Ms. Eckl

Noted that sonme state have funds but do
not pay dividends. For exanple, she
pointed out that Wom ng uses earnings
from a trust fund to apply to their
General Fund, and clarified that the
funds were not marked for any specific
pur pose.

713

Ms. Eckl

Not ed that nost states fiscal years began
July 1, so figures represent the first
six nonths of the year. She expl ai ned
t hat nost state budget problens had built
up over several years and were largely
due to a lack of revenue grow h. She
al so noted that, since this is an ongoi ng

House Fi nance Committee

2 02/18/03 2:18 PM




probl em a nunber of states have revi ewed
and adjusted their revenue projections.
Still, sonme states failed to neet
proj ected revenues. She also noted that
entering FY 2003, states projected
revenue growt h of 2% above prior year tax
collections, but it was unlikely that
this projection would be net. 40 states
collected |l ess revenue in FY 2002 than in
FY 2001. Responding to a question by Co-
Chair Harris, she explained that states
collected |ess revenue from persona
i ncome t axes. For exanpl e, in
California, personal income tax incone
was | argely driven by capital gains taxes
and t hus experienced significant
reducti ons. She also noted that incone
from corporate busi ness t axes has
reduced.

1007

Co-Chair Harris

Asked if other states balanced their
budget based on a reserve.

1023

Ms. Eckl

Responded that many states periodically
tap into their reserves to bring their
budgets into bal ance. She al so pointed
out that it was unusual for a state to
tap into its reserve on a regul ar basis.

1048

Co-Chair Harris

Asked if other states with a nechanismto
maintain a |level budget received nore
commerci al i nvestnent from corporations.

1058

Ms. Eckl

Responded that states have achieved
bal anced budgets by various nethods, such
as cutting spending and raising fees.
Arkansas uses ABC budgeting, prioritizing
categories of spending. I f revenues do
not neet proj ections, t he | ower
categories are cut. This results in
predi ctability in agency spending | evels.

1238

Co-Chair Harris

Suggested that in Al aska, perhaps nore is
not invested by corporations into the
State due to fiscal uncertainty. He
mai nt ai ned that a process that generated
nor e certainty woul d encour age
corporations to invest nore heavily in
Al aska.

1324

Ms. Eckl

Mentioned that in 1982 a report had been
devel oped, called the Principals of a
Hgh Quality State Revenue System
outlining the ideal tax structure.
Excepti ons wer e made for uni que
ci rcunst ances, such as for Alaska in its
m neral endowrents. Anong the principals
wer e sufficient revenue generating
ability, as  well as stability and

House Fi nance Committee

3 02/18/03 2:18 PM




predictability.

1432 | Ms. Eckl Referred to a chart illustrating State
Own- Source Revenue, such as inconme and
sal es taxes. She noted the questions
about t he |l ong-term viability of
corporate taxation. She noted that
corporations went through legal routes to
avoid corporate taxation, making it
difficult for policy makers to prevent
such avoi dance.

1642 | Representative Questioned if avoiding corporate taxation

Hawker created a revenue problem

1656 | Ms. EcKkl El aborated that, in addition to that

X problem internet sales and catal ogue
sale are prohibited from taxation due to
interstate comrerce | aws. There are
efforts to streamine state sales taxes
t hrough a special project. Discussion in
Washi ngt on DC proposes that giving states
ability to tax from internet vendors,
m ght be nore productive than focusing on
corporate incone taxes.

1816 | Representative Referred to the 14.1% of selected sales

Hawker t axes.

1845 | Ms. Eckl Expl ained that these refer to alcohol,
t obacco and notor fuel taxes.

1902 | Ms. EcKkl Referred to the outline of revenue
outl ook for FY 2003. 30 states expressed
concern, including Al aska. She al so
di scussed expenditure updates. 37 states
reported overrun spending. She al so
noted that 32 states reported Medicaid or
other health care prograns were over
budget . A FFIS study examned state
spendi ng and discerned that if Medicaid
spending was extracted, t hat state
spending remained fairly Ievel. She
noted that she could nake this report
avai |l abl e.

2120 | Ms. Eckl Referred to a map indicating states with

Medi caid overrun. A few states were able
to contain costs in Mdicaid and to
better project of expenses. She noted
that nore details were avail abl e through
anot her report. She stated that, in
general, many states had cut back on
optional programs, such as cervical and
breast cancer screening, raising concern
that recent program advances were now
bei ng reversed. Massachusetts had cut
over 50,000 people from its Medicaid
rolls by changing eligibility, but was
still experiencing spendi ng overruns.

House Fi nance Committee

4 02/18/03 2:18 PM




2250

Co-Chair Harris

Requested to see a copy of the report
regardi ng Medicaid cost containnent. He
also referred to the Federal nedica
assi stance match, and noted that Al aska
was previously higher in its match than
its current reduced rate.

2337

Ms. Eckl

Not ed that one proposal made by NCSL to
Congress was to allow former F nap
menbers stay in place during this tinme of
economic difficulty. She confirned that
changes in F mappi ng was causi ng probl ens
for many st ates.

2411

Representati ve
Hawker

Noted states that did not have overruns
seenred to have other factors that
di ffered. He wondered if they had
comonal i ti es.

2444

Ms. Eckl

Expl ained that these states had tightened
requirenents to contain Medicaid issues.

2519

Representati ve
Hawker

Asked if these states had sinply funded
t he denmand for projected Medi caid needs.

2545

Ms. Eckl

D scussed that W sconsin experienced many
budgetary chall enges. She noted that
t hey i npl enent ed significant t ax
i ncreases, partially to t obacco
settl enent noney.

2642

Ms. Eckl

Qutlined actions taken by states to deal
with shortfalls. One of the first
actions taken was to cut spending, for up
to 36 states. She al so explained that
sone states went into special |egislative
sessions to cut spending |evels. She
poi nted out that using tobacco settlenent
funds to stop budget gaps had net wth
sone controversy anong health advocates,
who proposed that these funds should be
used for related health care prograns.
She also nentioned that there had been
sone expectation that one-tine revenues
could be used for econom c recovery, but
that this had not proved to be effective,
| eading to other nore pernmanent actions.
She stated that nearly half of the states
had tapped their rainy day funds.

3012

Ms. Eckl

Noted that at the end of FY 2001, nearly
hal f of state bal ances were conprised of
rainy day funds. These funds were
depleted by FY 2002 by over half. FY
2003 projections for rainy day funds were
$11.4 billion, but indications are that
this nunber will be | ower.

3118

Ms. Eckl

Referred to a map illustrating states
with rainy day funds. Concern exists
anong investors regarding state bond

House Fi nance Committee

5 02/18/03 2:18 PM




ratings, which are determned partially
by the kind of financial cushion states
have in place. She noted that a
representative fromthe Standard and Poor
explained that it was expected for states
to use their reserve funds, but that they
di scouraged wusing one-tinme nonies for
| ong term expenditures.

3235

Ms. Eckl

Spoke to a chart illustrating state year-
end bal ances, tracked from 1978 til
2003. She noted that balances had
decreased in the early 90's, as well as
the early 80's. Currently, bal ances were
at 3.8%

3339

Ms. Eckl

Most states were nmking cuts in school
funding. For exanple, Oregon was cutting
its K- 12 spending. She also noted that
hi gher education was also experiencing
cuts, with the perception anong policy
maker s t hat hi gher educat i on had
alternative sources of incone. She
pointed out that nearly half of the
states wer e al so cutting their
corrections budgets; sone states were
also cutting Medicaid by tightening
eligibility. She also noted that state
enpl oyees received cutbacks, as well as a
delay in capital projects.

3633

Ms. Eckl

Noted that 18 states raised taxes | ast
year by nore than 1% Many states
focused on sales and use taxes. She
noted that these actions were taken even
in an election year. Most states
continue to have sizable budget gaps.
Hawaii was the only state to cut taxes by
nore than 1%

3749

Ms. Eckl

Referred to the <chart tracking tax
changes since 1989. She noted that
during 1991, taxes increased by $15.4
billion. She maintained that this kind
of i ncrease seened unl i kely gi ven
canpaign promses mde in the past
el ection. She observed that the | argest
increase was in cigarette and tobacco
t axes.

3922

Ms. Eckl

She pointed out that the total projected
budget gap was $68.5 billion, which she
noted was likely too | ow, since 12 states
had not yet provided information. She
also referred to a map indicating states
wi th budget gaps, and pointed out 18
states with gaps 10% and hi gher.

4026

Ms. Eckl

Noted that 25 states have tax proposals

House

Fi nance Commi tt ee

6 02/18/03 2:18 PM




under consi deration. Early proposals
focus on cigarette and alcohol taxes,
al though sonme states, Ilike California,
are looking to increase personal incone
t ax.

4119

Ms. Eckl

Al so pointed out some exanples of budget
bal ancing techniques in other states.
She maintained that there was no magic
formula, and that each state was | ooking
for a method that worked for them She
expl ai ned t hat a few states had
conmuni cated their nmethods to NCSL.

4212

Ms. Eckl

D scussed the nmethods used in various
states to bal ance budgets. She cited a
nunber of exanpl es: in Arizona, they
del ayed K-12 costs; Connecticut used tax
amesty prograns; lowa shifted $304.3
mllion in expenditures from General Fund
to non General Fund sources; Louisiana
uses t ax ammesty, as wel | as
ci rcunventing sur pl us revenue
limtations; M chi gan shifted t he
collection date of state education tax;

New Jersey created an alternative m ni num
assessnent provi sion, shori ng up
corporate incone tax, as well as raising
fees, flat funding a fornula school

prograns, and offering early retirenent

progr ans. She asserted t hat early
retirenment prograns m ght produce short-

term savi ngs, but long termcosts. Rhode
| sl and gave each departnment a single |ine
itemin budget and gave them flexibility
to operate within those |evels. Ut ah
changed di sbursenent to higher education
to a six nmonth period, and sold sone
state assets

TAPE HFC 03 - 21, Side B

4537

Ms. Eckl

Referred to the February 2003 issue of
Gover ni ng Magazi ne, highlighting a report
t hat descri bed state t ax sour ces,
including a report on Al aska. She
recommended that legislators utilize this
publ i cati on.

4555

Representati ve
Hawker

Asked whet her NCSL had a report conparing
budget gaps to another neasure of a
state’s economc level. He followed up
that this mght indicate how a state
stood up to its capacity for increased
revenues.

4523

Ms. Eckl

Stated that such a report did not exist.
The NCSL bases their budget gaps based on
the ratio of revenues to spendi ng.

House

Fi nance Commi tt ee

7 02/18/03 2:18 PM




4439

Ms. Eckl

Referred to a report created sone years
ago by the Advisory Commission on
I nt ergovernnental Relations (ACIR). The
ACIR spent time conpiling information on
state tax capacities and efforts. They
were interested in asking what kind of
effort was nade by a state conpared to
its potential. She noted that this study
was di sconti nued.

4351

Co-Chair Harris

Asked if any statistics were available
reflecting Alaska’ s per capita GCeneral
Fund spending as conpared to other
st at es.

4328

Ms. Eckl

Stated that she would research this data.

4249

Representati ve
Fost er

Commented that the nethod of giving
agencies a line itembudget would require
a great deal of trust in the agencies.

4212

Ms. Eckl

Conceded t hat danger exi sted t hat
| egislative intent would be overstepped
with such flexibility. However, she
stated that in Rhode Island, with
oversight, the nethod seenmed to be
wor Ki ng.

4133

Co-Chair Harris

Asked i f ot her states experi enced
chal l enges wth extended rural areas such
as in Al aska.

4111

Ms. Eckl

Noted that the geographic challenge of
Al aska was uni que. She al so nentioned
that sonme ot her states, such as North and
Sout h Dakot a, experi enced sonmewhat
simlar concerns, al t hough not as
extrene. She nentioned the Rural
Legi slators’ Caucus in Congress. Thi s
Caucus discussed rural devel opment and
actions taken to address common rural
concerns, such a lack of quality health
care. She commtted to sending a copy of
the results of the caucus to the
Comm ttee.

3943

Senat or Davi s

Asked if Alaska was represented in this
group and if the group was ongoi ng.

3922

Ms. Eckl

Stated that the group was open to al
st at es, but t hat Al aska was not
repr esent ed. She noted that the group
was not ongoing at this tine.

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:14 PM

House Fi nance Committee

8 02/18/03 2:18 PM




